
































































material which could be deployed in challenging him' (per Lord 
Hughes in B & Others above). 

175. It is also noted, however, that Lord Hughes in B & Others 
aclrnowledged that .... .. ''an extradition judge has power, if 
justice calls for it, to receive the evidence of a witness who is 
anonymous to one or all the parties" (see paragraph 63 of his 
ruling). In my view however, this current case is not one where 
justice demands such evidence to be given anonymously. 

176. The question of exclusion of evidence under the principles of 
s.78 of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act was considered in 
some detail by Professor Richard Stone, then of Nottingham 
University, in an article written in 1995. Whilst the general theme 
of that article related to considering evidence unfairly obtained 
by the prosecuting authorities, the article also considers other 
aspects of admissibility of evidence. 

177. During the course of this article, Professor Stone considers 
the ' Repute' issue ......... . 
'' the fourth approach is perhaps best exemplified by the 
Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms, which allows 
evidence to be excluded if 'having regard to all the 
circumstances, the admission of it would bring the administration 
of justice into disrepute ...... " Fairness of the proceedings" 
involves a consideration not only of fairness to the accused but 
also ... of fairness to the public'. 
The 'Repute' principle, for· this reason, is likely to leave much to 
the discretion of the judge in the particular case, who will have 
to weigh these two considerations, both of which are concerned 
with maintaining the reputation of the trial process'. 

178. As previously mentioned, it is relevant to bear in mind that 
during the course of his evidence Lord Carlile stated that : 
(i) SC Strategy received the information provided by trusted 
Romanian agents in respect of information provided to them by 
the anonymous Sources (A. to J). 
(ii) he has considered the contents of the statements of- as well 
as the additional information said to have been provided by - the 
anonymised witnesses '1', '2' and '3' as relayed to SC Strategy 
personnel. 
(iii) with the assistance of senior members of SC Strategy staff, 
he redacted those 3 witness statements, deleting parts of each 
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statement, including their names, dates of birth, signatures as 
well as other information set out therein. 
(iv) the internal procedure adopted by SC Strategy was that Lord 
Carlile met with Sir John and Dr Eyal to exchange views and 
opinions in 'brainstonning' sessions. This then enabled Lord 
Carlile to prepare the said SC Strategy reports. 

179. Lord Carlile reiterated that he and his SC Strategy colleagues 
specialise in : 
(i) Considering political risks 
(ii) Assessing matters of Foreign Policy 
(iii) Receiving information lawfully obtained by trusted agents 
here and abroad 
(iv) Reviewing and assessing the information received thereby 
enabling him to provide the opinions set out in the reports. 

180. Lord Carlile accepted that the SC Strategy reports in this 
case do not have any footnotes, or bibliographies, nor are there 
any known peer reviews. 
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181. SC Strategy Reports I Lord Carlile admissibility 
RULING: 
I have given this issue very careful consideration. I find that the 
information contained in the SC Strategy reports, as 
supplemented by the oral testimony of Lord Carlile, does not 
satisfy the test for admissible expert evidence, taking into 
account submissions made and all relevant case law, including 
the decisions of Schtracks v Israel and of B & Others v 
Westminster Magistrates Court (2015) . 

182. My reasons for this finding are: 
(a) Lord Carlile does not hold himself out to be an expert on 
matters relating to Romanian politics, albeit I am told by him that 
Dr Eyal is said to be such an expert. 
(b) Lord Carlile appears to have little first-hand knowledge of the 
factual matters set out in the body of the SC Strategy reports. 
(c) Lord Carlile refers to sources of opinion evidence in the SC 
Strategy reports but does not claim to have personal expert 
knowledge from which he would be able to make a reasoned and 
informed assessment of the reliability of such evidence. 
(d) Albeit he has doubtless worked closely with his eminent 
colleagues Sir John and Dr Eyal in respect of the preparation of 
the SC Strategy reports, no statement from either Sir John or Dr 
Eyal has been received by this court, and the Judicial Authority 
has therefore not had the opportunity of questioning either of 
them. 
(e) In relation to the information received by SC Strategy- via 
unnamed but trusted Romanian agents - the circumstances in 
which each '"Source'" (A to]) provided his or her information 
(e.g. the date(s) I place(s) I which agent met which source I who 
else was present and the like) remain unknown. 
(f) No explanation has been given as to why the identities of the 
Romanian agents have not been revealed. This court has not 
received any witness statement from any such agent - even in 
redacted form - and no explanation for such omission has been 
provided. 
(g) So far as has been made known to this court, none of the 10 
anonymous '"Sources" A to J has provided any form of written 
statement or affidavit Furthermore is it not known whether any 
or all of them had been made aware that the information provided 
by each was to be used in these open court proceedings. 
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183. I shall now proceed to consider the situation regarding 
these witness statements and information in the event that it 
were to be considered elsewhere that the evidence of Lord 
Carlile I the SC Strategy reports are all to be admitted into 
evidence. 

184. I therefore turn to consider the appropriate weight that 
should be given to this information I evidence, in that event. 

185. Mr Keith QC submits that the information provided by the 
10 'Sources' and the 3 unnamed witnesses produced by Lord 
Carlile should be given considerable weight. He points out that 
each of them holds or has held an important position within 
Romania and that unless they have all chosen to separately 
fabricate the information provided, their information should be 
accepted as being truthful and reliable. 

186. Mr Owen QC submits tha4 in the event that this court were 
to admit the contents of the SC Strategy Reports and Lord 
Carlile's accompanying testimony, no reliance can be properly 
placed on the SC Strategy material. 

187. This court notes that witnesses' 1' and '2' appear to have 
been asked further questions beyond the information set out in 
their redacted witness statements, but that this further 
information appears not to been signed by either of them, rather it 
has been provided to this court as a series of replies to questions 
said to have been asked of them. 

188. This Court has to bear in mind that the Judicial Authority 
has not been able to check any of the information provided by 
any of the anonymised witnesses revealed by SC Strategy. 

189. Furthermore, as previously stated, so far as the 'Sources' 
A-J are concerned, they have not been interviewed by SC 
Strategy employees or directors, but by their unnamed 
Romanian-based counterparts. 

190. In all the circumstances, therefore, in my opinion, were it to 
be considered that this evidence is, in fact, admissible, it would 
be appropriate for this court to give the oral evidence of Lord 
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Carlile and the contents of the SC Strategy Reports practically no 
weight at all. 

191. I would add that Lord Carlile's lack of necessary expertise 
is an added impediment to the weight that should be given to his 
live evidence as well as to the documents that he seeks to 
produce. 

192. Evidence of Dr Patrick Basham CDr Basham'). 
Dr Basham gave live evidence in support of the s.l3 and Article 
6 challenges. He is the founding Director of the Democracy 
Institute based in Washington USA. 

193. Dr Basham is an expert on the contemporary Romanian 
political system. He has also written extensively on Romanian 
politics and corruption. 

194. Dr Basham adopted the contents of his reports dated 27th 
September 2016 and 13th November 2017. 

195. Dr Basham provided some insight into the anti-corruption 
drive that is led by the Anti-Corruption Directorate CDNA '). The 
DNA was set up in 2002. In 2013 Laura Kovesi was appointed as 
the Chief Prosecutor for the DNA, a post that she retains to date. 

196. Dr Basham suggested that the DNA has been overly 
dependent on the Romanian Intelligence Service ('SRI' ) and has 
allowed itself to become embroiled in Romanian politics and 
that, as a result, it has lost its objectivity and independence. 

197. In Dr Basham's opinion, Mr Adamescu's case bears all the 
hallmarks of a politically-motivated prosecution. He said that the 
then Prime Minister (Victor Ponta) appeared to have been almost 
obsessed with the idea of silencing any critical media outlet (such 
as 'Romania Libera'), albeit Dr Basham acknowledged that this 
newspaper still operates and remains privately-owned by the 
Nova Group, in which Mr Adamescu has a substantial interest. 

198. Dr Basham was also critical of former Prime Minister 
Ponta' s "varied and well-documented public attacks on the 
Adamescus and their business enterprises ... " as well as "the 

36 



Romanian Government's decision to retaliate against Alexander 
Adamescu because he is mounting a legal defence of his families 
(sic) insurance company." 

199. Dr Basham suggested that the Romanian request for the 
extradition of Mr Adamescu .. . ''was made, apparently, for the 
purposes of prosecuting and punishing him on account of his 
political opinions''. 

200. Dr Basham is not legally qualified and the assertion that he 
makes at page 8 of his written report appears - on its face - to 
seek to usurp the role of this court in determining whether this 
extradition request is politically-motivated. Albeit not a critical 
factor, Mr Adamescu's political opinions remain unknown to this 
court. 

201. During the course of his oral testimony, Dr Basham 
acknowledged that he had not carried out any review of the 
evidence presented by the Romanian authorities in the 
prosecution of Mr Adamescu, that he had not interviewed or 
otherwise spoken to any of the Judges, witnesses or co­
defendants involved in this case nor had he attended the trial of 
the co-defendants nor the appeal of Dan Adamescu. 

202. Evidence of Mr Catalin Breazu CMr Breazu'). 
Mr Breazu is a Romanian lawyer who acted for Dan Adamescu 
in the Romanian criminal proceedings between February 2016 
and January 2017. 

203. He adopted the contents of his statement dated 2nd 

November 2017. 

204. Mr Breazu provided evidence relating to the health issues 
that his then client suffered whilst detained ~ Romanian prison 
estate. 

205. Mr Breazu also provided details of the unsuccessful 
applications for release that were made on Dan Ademescu 's 
behalf up until shortly before his death in custody. 

37 



206. Evidence of Professor Norel Neagu (Prof. Neagu') 
Prof Neagu is a qualified Romanian lawyer and an Associate 
Professor at the Titulescu University in Bucharest. He adopted 
the contents of the joint report that he had prepared with 
Professor Mihai Hotca. 

207. He adopted the contents of his reports dated 1sth September 
2016 and 27th March 2017 (this 2nd report was not served and 
filed until 31st October 2017). 

208. Prof Neagu is critical of the evidential basis of the 
conviction of Dan Adamescu. He also queries the apparent 
decision to re-open the case against Mr Adamescu in December 
2015 after what he says was an unexplained delay of circa 18 
months. He also criticises certain unfavourable political 
pronouncements indicating guilt said to have been made by the 
then Prime Minister, Victor Ponta, prior to Dan Adamescu's 
criminal trial. 

209. The defence suggest that the re-launch of proceedings 
against Mr Adamescu was a knee-jerk reaction to the 
contemplated arbitration proceedings commenced against 
Romania by the Nova group. 

210. However it appears that the Romanian prosecution was only 
informed in the summer of 2016 of the said arbitration 
proceedings, approximately 7 or 8 months after the resumption 
of the criminal process against Mr Adamescu. 

211. Furthermore, the Judicial Authority has explained that the 
reason for severing Mr Adamescu' s case from his co-accused 
was so as to afford him the opportunity to present himself and in 
order to protect his rights. 

212. There is clearly a substantial disagreement between Prof 
Neagu and the Romanian prosecutor in respect of : 
(i) whether one or more witnesses was given a pardon 
(ii) the validity of the conviction of Dan Adamescu at his trial. 

213. It is not for this court to decide the guilt or innocence of any 
person whose extradition is sought either to stand trial or to serve 
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a sentence of custody, having previously been convicted by a 
foreign court. 

214. It is also noted that the Romanian penal system has an 
established appeal system in relation to criminal cases. 
A disgruntled party may appeal to the Court of Appeal and, 
where appropriate, thereafter to the Romanian Supreme Court. 

215. Evidence of Dr Roxana Bratu CDr Bratu'} 
Dr Bratu is an academic research associate in Global and 
European Anti-Corruption Policies at University College London 
and a former Visiting Fellow at the centre for Criminology at 
Oxford University. 

216. She adopted the contents of her reports dated 26th 
September 2016 and lOth November 2017. 

217. Dr Bratu's opinion is that there are likely to be .. . ' ' elements 
of political motivation and I or political interference in the 
prosecutions brought against Mr Adamescu (Sr)l Mr 
Adamescu''. 

218. She based her fmdings on the following assertions that she 
makes; 
(i) There was a wish to discredit Dr Basescu, the former 
President of Romania and former ally of Dan Adamescu 
(ii) There was also a desire to capitalise on the fall of the Astra 
Insurance Group (having prized it away from the control of the 
Adamescu family) and 
(iii) The Romanian authorities sought to weaken the influence of 
the Romania Libera newspaper as it had been a supporter of Dr 
Basescu. 

219. Dr Bratu accepted that the Romania Libera newspaper has 
not been shut down by the Government, and that it has been 
allowed to continue to operate on an entirely independent basis, 
remaining under the control of the Nova Group. 

220. Dr Bratu agreed that she has not conducted any review of the 
evidence in the case against Mr Adamescu. She acknowledged, 
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however, that such an evidential review would be a critical 
element in order to be able to form an appropriate view as to 
whether, for example, the prosecution could be said not to be 
'genuine'. 

221. Furthermore, like Dr Basham, she had not spoken to any of 
the Judges, witnesses or co-defendants linked to this case, nor 
had she attended Dan Adamescu .. s trial or Appeal. 

222. Dr Bratu felt unable to express an opinion on the validity of 
the convictions of any co-accused in this case, nor in respect of 
the strength or otherwise of the case against Mr Adamescu. 

223. She was asked about the trial of Alina Bica, but she also elt 
unable to express an opinion as to its fairness. 

224. Dr Bratu agreed that the SNA had launched a criminal 
prosecution against former Prime Minister Victor Ponta, after he 
had left office. 

225. She stated that, in her opinion, the fact that Dan Adamescu 
had been convicted did not necessarily mean that Mr Adamescu 
would also be found guilty at his trial. 

226. Evidence of Adriana Constantinescu. ('Ms C'). 
Ms C gave live evidence in support of her partner, Mr Adamescu. 
She adopted the contents of her signed witness statements dated 
19th September 2016 and 21st July 2017. Her latter statement 
had been submitted to the ICSID in support of the claims made 
against Romania by the Nova Group Investments. B.V. Her said 
statement dated 21st July 2017 was only served and flied with 
this court on 31st October 2017. 

227. Ms C gave details of visits to Dan Adamescu in the months 
leading up to his unfortunate death in January 2017. She 
provided details of his failing health and she lays the blame, in 
very large part on the poor conditions that he faced within the 
Romanian prison estate. 
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228. Ms C gave details of an occasion when she says that she 
was~ in effect, prevented from leaving Romania with her young 
son in February 2016. 

229. She also related 2 events in London which, if they are a 
truthful and accurate recollection of events, would have been 
very disconcerting for her. Ms C asserts that these incidents 
amounted to deliberate harassment by Romanian authorities 
because of her and Mr Adamescu' s association with Dan 
Adamescu and Astra Insurance. 

230. On the 1st occasion Ms C believes that she was the victim of 
an attempted kidnap attempt. This was in March 2016 when she 
says that she was attacked in the street near to her home in North 
West London during the course of which there was no apparent 
attempt to steal from her. 

231. The 2nd incident is said to have occurred on a date in 
January 2017 when Ms C believes that she was being kept under 
surveillance by members of the Romanian secret police I service 
whilst in Hampstead, North London. 

232. Ms C reported both of the above 'London' incidents to the 
police in a timely fashion, but it appears that no police action 
resulted. 

233. If indeed the incident$ did occur as described, it is to be 
noted that the first took place in an area that, sadly, is well known 
for street robberies and other acts of anti-social behaviour. So far 
as the second is concerned, the purpose of the purported 
surveillance has not been made clear. 

234. It may be that each of these incidents is capable of a rational 
explanation but it would be inappropriate for this court to 
speculate and it does not feel able to make any findings in respect 
of those purported incidents. 
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235. Evidence of Professor Nigel Eastman ('Prof. Eastman'). 
Prof. Eastman gave evidence at the resumed hearing on 31st 
January 2018. 

236. His evidence is provided by way of support for the Article 3 
challenge based on prison conditions in Romania, including the 
healthcare provisions available in the event of extradition being 
ordered. 

237. Prof. Eastman has the following professional qualifications : 
.MD, MB, B Sc (Econ), Barrister, FRCPsych. 
He is Emeritus Professor of Law and Ethics in Psychiatry, and 
Honorary Consultant Psychiatrist at St Georges' University of 
London. 

238. He adopted his written reports dated 29th September 2016 
and 22nd November 2017 which were prepared for use in these 
proceedings. Prof. Eastman is an experienced medical 
practitioner who has given written and oral evidence to this (and 
other UK courts) on a considerable number of occasions in the 
past. 

239. His expressed the opinion that Mr Adamescu suffers from 
bipolar affective disorder and that he exhibits symptoms of a 
major depressive illness. He was assisted in his assessment of 
Mr Adamescu's condition not only by the face to face meetings 
with the defendant but also with a lengthy interview with Mr 
Adamescu's partner who gave an account of his behaviour that 
appears to be consistent with a history of hypomania. 

240. Prof. Eastman stated that it is very important for Mr 
Adamescu' s condition and medication to be kept under regular 
revue. He expressed concerns that were this not to occur, Mr 
Adamescu's condition may worsen with potentially serious 
adverse consequences. 

241. Prof Eastman acknowledged that he had not been provided 
with access to any of Mr Adamescu' s medical records from the 
USA. He is said to have 'suffered a second major breakdown' 
whilst living in New York some years ago (see para. 41 of Prof. 
Eastman's 1st Report). Furthermore, the professor had not 
received any medical records from Germany where it is said that 
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Mr Adamescu had been declared medically unfit for military 
service. 

242. However Prof. Eastman stressed that the lack of previous 
medical notes is not a serious impediment to being able to make 
an informed opinion, as he had been able to consider and assess 
other avenues of infonnation. 

243. He noted that Mr Adamescu had expressed a long -standing 
reluctance in attending doctors in the past, preferring to self­
medicate with lithium which he says that he had been able to 
source on-line, as well as blood tests which he said that he had 
also arranged himself. 

244. Prof. Eastman had seen the reports of Dr Joseph and 
considers, what he describes as the latter's ' scepticism' with 
respect to whether Mr Adamescu is actually suffering from bi­
polar affective disorder ' hangs on very little' . 

245. He agreed that the fact that Romanian law allows a prison 
inmate to engage his or her own private doctor is a right not 
enjoyed by inmates within the UK prison estate. 

246. Prof. Eastman was Wlable to express an opinion as to the 
medical facilities available within the Romanian prison system 
but he was confident that Mr Adamescu's condition could be 
appropriately managed within the UK prison estate. 

247. He agreed that an inmate in the UK suffering from bi-polar 
affective disorder was somewhat easier to treat than a person 
suffering from, say, diabetes or epilepsy as the latter 2 conditions 
could alter very rapidly whereas the former was slower to 
change. 

248. Prof. Eastman remained confident of his diagnosis. He says 
that making an assessment of a person's condition is not 
dissimilar to putting together pi~es of a jigsaw at the conclusion 
of which the whole picture can be accurately seen. 
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Live Expert Evidence Called by the Judicial Authority : 
249. Dr Philip Joseph ('Dr Joseph' ) prepared 2 reports for use in 

these proceedings. These reports are dated znd March 2017 and 
18th January 2018. 

250. Dr Joseph is an experienced Consultant Forensic Psychiatrist 
based at both StMary's Hospital Paddington and St Charles 
Hospital in West London. He was the only live witness called by 
the Judicial Authority during the course of the full hearing. 

251. UK courts have received oral and written testimony from Dr 
Joseph for a number of years. He attended this court on 31st 
January 2018 to give evidence and adopted the contents of his 
said reports. 

252. Dr Joseph had previously interviewed Mr Adamescu on 2 
occasions, but not his partner. He had also considered the 
contents to the reports prepared by Prof Eastman. 

253. Dr Joseph acknowledged that the information provided by 
Mr Adamescu and his partner is consistent with a diagnosis of 
bipolar-affective disorder but he pointed out that this was not 
supported by independent medical evidence. 

254. Dr Joseph is of the opinion that Mr Adamescu is suffering 
from a moderately severe rather than a severe depression. He 
notes that Mr Adamescu is able to manage his affairs, instruct 
lawyers, give evidence (as he did at some length in early 2017 
during the International Arbitration Proceedings) and follow 
court proceedings without apparent undue difficulty. 

255. During the course of hls ftrst appointment with Dr Joseph, 
Mr Adamescu said that he had been excused from military 
service in Germany by reason of his mental health issues but a 
letter which he later provided to Dr Joseph when they met again 
in January 2018 states that the reason for discharge was, in fact, 
physical and unconnected with any mental health issues. 

256. Dr Joseph said that in all his years of practice he had never 
heard of anyone self-medicating with lithium for 12 (or so) years 
as .Mr Adamescu asserts that he had. Dr Joseph also noted that 
Mr Adamescu's professed reluctance to seek medical assistance 
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from doctors appears to have completely evaporated after his 
arrest in these proceedings. 

257. Furthermore, Dr Joseph was very surprised to learn that 
there had apparently been a medical need for Mr Adamescu to be 
admitted to the Priory Hospital in North London only 4 days after 
meeting and engaging well with Dr Joseph (in January 2018). 

258. It is also noted that, according to his private treating 
psychiatrist, Dr G Isaacs, Mr Adamescu discharged himself from 
the clinic 2 days later for financial, (rather than medical) reasons. 

259. While not suggesting that he had seen evidence of fakery by 
Mr Adamescu, Dr Joseph thought it important and appropriate to 
inform the court of his noted reservations. 

260. Furthermore, from what he had seen and read, Dr Joseph 
was not persuaded that Mr Adamescu currently suffers from 
bipolar-affective disorder. Mr Adamescu appears not to have had 
any major episode since 2005 while apparently self-medicating 
from 2005 to 2016 without adverse incident. 

261. Put bluntly, Dr Joseph expressed considerable doubts as to 
whether Mr Adamescu has, in fact, been self-medicating for the 
12 year period he has stated, or monitoring his blood levels for 
that time span. 

262. No medical notes from any of his treating doctors have been 
provided by Mr Adamescu to support his claimed health issues 
nor has he served a proof of evidence in relation thereto. 

263. As mentioned below, this cotut heard Mr Adamescu give 
evidence at some length on 23ro March 2018. As is explained 
hereafter, I did not fmd him to have been a totally reliable 
witness. Rather he came across to this court as someone whose 
evidence was carefully calibrated. 

264. I have had the opportunity of assessing the credibility Mr 
Adamescu's oral testimony. Additionally, I have had the 
opportunity of considering the expert evidence given to this court 
by both Prof Eastman and Dr Joseph. I make clear that where 
there is a difference of opinion between these eminent experts in 
respect of Mr Adamescu' s health issues, I have little difficulty in 
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prefering the opinions expressed by Dr Joseph. I accept Dr 
Joseph' s scepticism ofMr Adamescu' s professed health issues. I 
agree with Dr Joseph when, for example, he raised serious doubts 
as to whether, in fact, Mr Adamescu (i) self-medicated without 
apparent difficulty for bi-polar disorder for a period of 12 years 
(ii) is currently suffering from bi-polar disorder. 

265. LETTER DATED 22ndC?> DECEMBER 2017: 
I now have to deal with matters that arose during the course of, 
and resulting from the hearing of 31st January 2018. May I say 
straightaway that there is no suggestion of any improper conduct 
either by Mr Adamescu' s counsel or solicitors in respect of what 
took place on that day, or thereafter. 

266. It is necessary to go into these events in some detail. 
On 31st January 2018, during the course of his opening address 
in relation to the Article 3 Challenge, Mr Keith QC produced a 
further piece of evidence to the court. He had served a copy 
thereof on those representing the Judicial Authority earlier in the 
day. 

267. The document in question was a colour copy of a letter dated 
22nd December 2017 (hereinafter referred to as 'the letter' ) 
which although emanating from the heads of Romanian Prison 
Authorities to another department of the Romanian State, had an 
accompanying envelope addressed to Mr Adamescu. It was said 
that the original of the letter had been sent to the Romana Libera 
newspaper in Romania in response to a number of requests made 
by the newspaper regarding the prison conditions to which Mr 
Adamescu would be subjected if he were to be extradited. 

268. Romana Libera remains under the direct control of the Nova 
Group ('Nova' ) and Mr Adamescu is said to have a substantial 
proprietorial interest in Nova. 

269. This court was told that the letter had been received by the 
defence only the day before, i.e. 30th January 2018- some 40 
days after the date on its face (or 50 days if the original date was 
12th December 2017). No explanation was provided for the 
noticeable delay in transmission and I or receipt of the letter. 
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270. The letter purports to seriously contradict the most recent 
assurance document provided by the Judicial Authority dated 15th 
November 2017 regarding the personal space to be made 
available to Mr Adamescu in the event of his return. 

271. In short, the letter offers conditions that would almost 
certainly not be considered to be Article 3 compliant and 
therefore, if accepted by this court, would almost certainly result 
in extradition being refused on that ground alone. 

272. If accurate, the contents of the letter would most likely 
shatter the credibility of the Judicial Authority in respect of the 
prison conditions assurances provided to the UK authorities. 

273. Mr Owen QC was able to take urgent initial instructions on 
the contents of the letter. He reported back to the court that the 
letter appeared to be a forgery. 

274. It later became apparent that there was considerable 
evidence showing that the letter had been fabricated. These are : 
(i) The heading reference (1st page, top right hand corner) 
63334/DSDRP relates to a domestic Romanian crime case, of 
Grigora Panait - totally unconnected with Mr Adamescu. 
(ii) There is mention in the body of the letter to an earlier prison 
conditions assurance dated 17lli August 2017 said to relate to Mr 
Adamescu, with an accompanying Romanian file number 
45313/DSDRP. However no such assurance document dated 17th 
August 2017 in respect of Mr Adamescu has ever been served 
(iii) The file reference 45313/DSDRP/17.08.2017 (and 
accompanying assurance) relates to a female, Alina-Elena 
Raducanu ('Ms Raducanu') whose extradition had been sought 
by Romania from the UK in 2017 to serve a sentence of 
imprisonment for people-trafficking - again totally unconnected 
with Mr Adamescu. 
(iv) The Judicial Authority stated that in respect of the letter, the 
Romanian prison authorities had not received any prior enquiry 
from the newspaper (Romana Ubera) and that, even if they had, 
they would not have sent an assurance document to any such 
periodical. It also discounted the possibility that the letter could 
have been transmitted in error. 
(v) It is not accepted that the purported author of the letter, 
the Chief Penitentiary Commissioner and Manager of the 
Directorate for Safety of Detention and Penitentiary System, 
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Razvan Constantin Cotofana signed the letter, nor did he 
authorise its dispatch. 
(vi) The final page of the letter (by the signature) bears a red 
circular seal said to be of the National Directorate for the 
Management of Penitentiaries, Ministry of Justice, Romania, 
however, the seal used by the National Directorate is said to be 
blue. 

275. On Sfh February 2018 email enquiries were made by the 
CPS of Mishcon de Reya, as to the circumstances in which the 
letter (and covering envelope) had been received. Mr Adamescu 
and his solicitor were asked to provide written statements in 
relation thereto. The solicitors were also asked to provide the 
original of the letter for forensic examination by the Romanian 
authorities. No acknowledgement or reply was received to that 
letter. 

276. A follow-up letter to Mishcon de Reya dated 16th February 
2018 was sent by the CPS, but again that also did not meet with 
either acknowledgement or reply. 

277. A further follow-up letter was sent to them on 26th 
February 2018. 

278. A reply dated 181 March 2018 was sent by Mishcon de Reya, 
stating ... 'Out of courtesy we write to inform you that we will 
not be providing written witness statements to the CPS or court 
in relation to the matter raised in your letter of 5 February 2018. 
There is no legal obligation on Mr Adamescu or us to do so and 
it would be wrong in principle. 
Leading counsel will however be responding to the substance of 
your letter, and will be providing the court with an explanation of 
the events in question'. 
As can be seen, no mention was made as to the whereabouts of 
the original of the letter or whether I when it would be made 
available to the CPS for onward transmission to the Romanian 
authorities. 

279. At the Mention bearing of 2nd March 2018, Mr Keith QC 
was unfortunately unable to attend court by reason of inclement 
weather, but his able junior Mr Watson was able to provide the 
explanation to the court. 
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280. Mr Watson stated that the defence had come to accept that 
is not genuine but that, at all material times, Mr Adamescu had 
acted in good faith and in the belief that the letter was authentic. 

281. Mr Watson then gave the explanation which in the opinion 
of this court lacked credibility. 

282. This court felt it necessary to express its concerns that, 
taking into account the contents of the letter and the information 
subsequently provided by Romania, there appeared to be 
evidence that may amount to an attempt or a conspiracy to 
pervert the course of justice in respect of these proceedings in 
this court. 

283. The court was careful not to express any view as to whether 
Mr Adamescu may or may not have been involved in any such 
activity but that the court may well feel it necessary to revisit the 
question of bail. 

284. During his address Mr Watson served a 4 page signed Proof 
of Evidence of Mr Adamescu dated 1st March 2018 which dealt 
specifically with events relating to the letter. 

285. Counsel added that his client was now prepared to give 
evidence on oath in respect of this matter. The hearing for Mr 
Adamescu to do so was fued for 2Yd March 2018. 

286. Mr Owen QC again enquired as to the whereabouts of the 
original of the letter which the CPS had repeatedly sought but in 
respect of which enquiry there had been no response. 

287. Mr Watson' s instructions were that the original of the letter 
had been destroyed albeit he was unable to provide further details 
save that the destruction may have been carried out by someone 
working at the Romana Libera newspaper. 

288. This court revisited the question of bail and Mr Adamescu 
was remanded in custody as it was considered that there were 
now substantial grounds for believing that he had become a flight 
risk. 
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289. On 6th March 2018, Mr Keith QC was able to attend and 
make a renewed application for bail, but this was again refused 
on the same basis as before (flight risk). 

290. This court stated that it was minded to entertain a further bail 
application in the event that Mr Adamescu were to chose to give 
evidence in relation to the letter, as that was likely to amount to 
sufficient change in circumstances. 

291. The hearing was adjourned to 23m March 2018 to afford Mr 
Adamescu the opportunity - if he so chose - to give evidence in 
respect of the letter. 

292. On 23rd March 2018, Mr Adamescu decided that he would 
give evidence and did so for just over 1¥2 hours. He gave his 
evidence in a very measured, assured and confident fashion. He 
adopted the contents of his 4 page signed proof of evidence dated 
1st March 2018. 

293. Having listened with care to his evidence, in my opinion Mr 
Adamescu was not a totally credible witness .. 

294. I agree with Prof Eastman, that Mr Adamescu is an articulate 
and very intelligent man. His command of English is impeccable. 

295. Mr Adamescu maintained - unconvincingly in this court's 
opinion - that he had had no reason at all to doubt the 
authenticity of the letter until very recently. He confirmed the 
version of events that had been provided to this court earlier by 
his counsel, and in general, in accordance with his signed proof 
of evidence. 

296. Mr Adamescu said that, once he received the letter on 30th 
January 3018, he only skim read it, such was his excitement as 
to its contents, while at the same time feeling sure that the 
Romanian authorities would seek to undermine its contents. 
I did not find this evidence credible. It stretches credibility too far 
to think that he only ' skim read' such a crucial document 
particularly as it remained in his possession for a day or so before 
the hearing resumed on 31st January 2018. 

297. If Mr Adamescu honestly had no reason to doubt the 
authenticity of the letter, he would not have had any justifiable 
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reason to think that Romania would look to challenge its 
contents. Furthermore it is not at all clear why he apparently felt 
the need to check the signature of the author of the letter against 
earlier signatures. 

298. Is it also mere coincidence that the letter- (albeit dated 
either 12th or 22nd December 2017) was only said to have been 
received by both Romana Libera and by Mr Adamescu on 30th 
January 2018, just the day before the final day's hearing? 

299. In any event, Mr Adamescu said that albeit he did re-read the 
letter later on 30th January 2018 he again did not pick up on the 
various discrepancies set out at paragraph 274 above nor did he 
notice that there was no mention of what would have been 
important rights for him, as a foreign national : 
(i) to receive consular visits or 
(ii) to be able to engage the services of a private doctor, 
even though such rights had been clearly set out in the most 
recent (i.e. lsth November 2017) Romanian assurance document. 

300. Albeit the letter was addressed to 'Mrs Manager' and was 
apparently being sent from one organ of the Romanian State to 
another, the fact that the envelope from the Ministry stated that 
Mr Adamescu was to be the recipient, did not seem to raise his 
concerns. 

301. Also it did not apparently seem strange to Mr Adamescu 
that the author of the letter (Mr Cotofana) will have penned it 
only a month or so after he had released a significantly different 
one. 

302. · In evidence, when pressed by Mr Owen QC to confirm 
whether, in fact, be now accepted that the letter was a fabrication, 
Mr Adamescu seemed more intent on maintaining insistence that 
the substance of the letter was accurate rather than expressly state 
whether or not he now agreed that it had been fabricated. 

303. During the course of his live evidence Mr Adamescu 
appeared to be rowing back from the earlier concession, made on 
his behalf, that the defence did accept that the letter had been 
fabricated. 
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304. Returning to the chronology of earlier events, Mr Adamescu 
gave an unconvincing account of the meeting which he said took 
place- on a date he said he was unable to recall- between 
himself, and 'J' the investigative journalist from his newspaper 
and '.f s contact from the Romanian prison department 'X'. 

305. J is said to have brought X from Romania as apparently, J 
did not fully understand the import of the terms of the assurance 
letters previously seen. 

306. Mr Adamecsu also stated that he provided J - at the latter's 
request - with a copy of the assurance documents (15th 
November 2017 relating to him & 17th September 2017 relating 
to Mrs Raducanu) but claimed - unconvincingly in my opinion -
to be unaware as to what use might be made of them by J. 

307. During his evidence, Mr Adamescu decided to name J but 
not X, as his solicitors had undertaken to X that his identity 
would be protected. He added, however, that were he to be held 
in contempt of court for not providing X' s name, he would reveal 
it, but not otherwise. Mr Adamescu maintained that, in any event, 
he had only ever been provided with X' s first name. 

308. I did not consider it appropriate to embark on a contempt of 
court exercise. 

309. Mr Adamescu claimed to have carried out the Cotofana 
signature comparison exercise in respect of the letter only after 
Mr Owen QC had challenged its veracity in court on 31st 
January 2018. This contradicts what he had stated in his 
adopted, signed proof of evidence. 

310. In paragraphs 13 & 14 of his proof of evidence Mr 
Adamescu states that he ... 'searched for and checked' the 
(Cotofana) signatures before 'Ultimately I decided that I should 
ask for the document to be shown in court' thus giving the clear 
impression that this checking occurred before he authorised the 
letter to be served and before Mr Owen questioned its 
legitimacy. 

311. No statement or other information has been received from J, 
X or C to support any aspect of Mr Adamescu's version of the 
above events in respect of the letter. 
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312. This court has been informed that a criminal complaint has 
been laid by the Romanian prison authorities with the Romanian 
prosecutor' s department in respect of matters relating to and 
arising from the letter. 

313. A third bail application was then made (by Mr Keith QC), 
but was refused on the same ground as before (flight risk). 

314. This court has learned that Mr Justice Kerr refused a 
further application for bail on 9th April 2018. Mr Adamescu gave 
live evidence to the learned· Judge during the course of that bail 
application. 

315. The Lawtel note of that bail hearing records, inter alia, that 
the learned judge held .... "The applicant's evidence about the 
circumstances in which the letter had been produced was 
unconvincing. It was not clear how and why he had relied on the 
supposed expertise of the newspaper staff to authenticate the 
letter and why they had validated it when its authenticity could 
easily have been tested. The district judge had been right to be 
sceptical about the applicant's claim that he had accepted the 
document in good faith. It had allegedly been received by a 
newspaper which he owned and controlled and he was the only 
person who stood to benefit from its production. Although other 
explanations were possible, the likelihood was that the applicant 
had been involved in its production. That meant that the court 
could be satisfied that there were substantial grounds for 
believing that the applicant would fail to surrender to custody or 
interfere with witnesses or obstruct the course of justice. There 
was strong evidence to suggest that he was willing to resort to 
unlawful as well as lawful means to resist extradition ..... " 
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RULINGS ON CHALLENGES RAISED : 

316. s.21A Ruling : 
Albeit the parties have not made any particular submission on 
this issue, the court is required to consider s.21 A as this is an 
accusation request. 

317. In relation to s.21 A proportionality, the allegations are 
serious and in the event that Mr Adamescu were to be convicted 
of like conduct in the UK, it is this court' s opinion that a prison 
sentence of some length may well result. 
Furthermore if convicted in the requesting state, a sentence of 
imprisonment may well also result. 
Extradition would not be s.21A disproportionate in this case. 

318. In respect of s.21 A compatibility, having reviewed the 
evidence received, I take the view that extradition will be entirely 
compatible with RJ's Convention rights. 

319. Romania is a signatory to the European Convention on 
Human Rights and I am entirely satisfied that it will abide by its 
Convention obligations in relation thereto. 

320. This court therefore fmds that the provisions of s.21 A (both 
limbs) have been satisfied in this case. 

321. s.13(a) Ruling : 
The mischief that this section of the 2003 Act strives to prevent is 
the making of a request for extradition by reason of political 
opinions. 

322. Under the provisions of s.l3 the requested person has to 
demonstrate that there is a causal link between the proceedings 
themselves, or the likely prejudice, by reason of one of the 
identified grounds. 

323. The former Prime Minister Victor Ponta ('Ponta') was in 
post from May 2012 to November 2015. In June 2015 a 
criminal investigation was opened against him in respect of 
allegations of forgery, tax evasion and money-laundering. 
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324. The EA Win relation to Mr Adamescu was issued by Judge 
Ovidiu Richiteanu Nastase on 6th June 2016, over 7 months 
after Ponta left office. 

325. It is submitted on Mr Adamescu' s behalf that it would have 
been politically inappropriate for the Romanian authorities to 
have withdrawn the EA W after Ponta~s resignation, and that they 
would be not uncomfortable if this request were to be denied. I 
have received no convincing evidence to support that contention. 

326. In further written information provided to this court, Laura 
Kovesi has stated that decisions to open criminal investigations 
are made by prosecutors without consideration of, or any 
influence from, any political factors. 

327. Ms Kovesi strongly challenges the suggestion that she 
attended any meeting with political decision-makers and I or 
discussed sensitive matters pertaining to DNA investigations 
with any of those officials. 

328. I return to one of the basic principles of extradition. It is a 
rebuttable presumption that requests are made in good faith and 
that, absent compelling evidence to the contrary, assertions made 
by or on behalf of requesting Judicial Authorities should be 
accepted by the requested State. The onus is on the defence to 
rebut the presumption with compelling evidence. I have not 
received such evidence in this case. 

329. This court rejects the submission that this EA W was issued 
in order to punish Mr Adamescu for his political beliefs 
(whatever they might be), or for any other inappropriate 
politically-linked reason. 

330. Contrary to what has been submitted by the defence, this 
court does not find that there is persuasive evidence to support 
the assertion that the decision to prosecute Mr Adamescu was 
taken at 'the highest political lever. 

331. Having given careful consideration to the submissions made, 
this challenge must fail. 

332. s.13(b) Ruling : 
So far as a s.l3(b) risk that Mr Adamescu will suffer prejudice at 
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his trial, and I or be punished and I or suffer other ill-treatment by 
reason of 'political beliefs', the submissions made by the defence 
are rejected and this challenge must fail. 

333. The European Commission's Co-Operation and Verification 
Report published on 15th November 2017 states, inter alia, 
.... ''the 10 years' perspective showed that Romania had made 
major progress towards Co-Operation and Verification 
mechanism ('CVM') benchmarks .... The report confirmed that 
the Romanian judicial system had profoundly reformed itself and 
that the judiciary had repeatedly demonstrated its 
professionalism, independence and accountability . ..... '' 

334. Whilst it is acknowledged that there appears to have been 
some tension between recent Romanian Governments, Parliament 
and the Romanian Judiciary - accentuated by recent changes of 
Government (and Prime Ministers)- this court is not persuaded 
that any fallout that may have arisen will adversely affect Mr 
Adamescu' s trial. 

335. Dr Bratu, an expert witness called by the defence, 
acknowledged that merely because Dan Adamescu had been 
convicted, this did not mean that Mr Adamescu would also be 
convicted. He added that individuals with established political 
profiles may face true indictments and have a fair trial in 
Romania. 

336. Mr Breazu, another expert witness called by the defence 
stated that at trial, Mr Adamescu will have a different judge to 
the one who had presided over his father's trial. 

337. Abuse of Process (Linked to s.13 challenges). 
At the same time as dealing with the s.l3 challenges this court 
has borne in mind, and given consideration to, the parallel Abuse 
of Process submissions linked thereto. 

338. This court rejects the Abuse of Process challenge. This court 
finds that there is no - or insufficient - evidence to support the 
contention that there is or has been any usurpation of the 
statutory regime of extradition either in respect of the issue of the 
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EA W or such as would or might lead to prejudice or unfairness to 
Mr Adamescu at his future trial. 

339. Article 6 Ruling: 
Mr Adamescu submits that he will not receive a fair trial in the 
event of his return. Extradition may be incompatible with Article 
6 if there are substantial grounds for believing that there is a real 
risk that he will suffer a flagrant denial of justice'. 

340. As previously stated, this being a Part 1 request, there is a 
(rebuttable) presumption that EU Member States will abide by 
their Convention obligations, inter alia, to provide the extraditee 
with a fair trial. 

341. The type of evidence needed to rebut this presumption is 
akin to an international consensus, such as a significant volume 
of reports from the Council of Europe, the UNHCW and NGOs. 
Such evidence has not been produced in this case. 

342. The reality in this case is that : 
(i) The allegations against Mr Adamescu are not stale. 
(ii) It is not suggested that Mr Adamescu no longer has available 
to him evidence or witnesses whom he would wish to call in 
support of his defence. 
(iii) Mr Adamescu will be able to give evidence and call evidence 
in support of his defence. 
(iv) In Romania Mr Adamescu has the benefit of the presumption 
of innocence. 
(vi) The Romanian prosecuting authorities have the burden of 
proving the case against him to the requisite standard. 
(vii) Mr Adamescu will doubtless be able to continue to avail 
himself of the experienced Romanian lawyers of his choice who 
have robustly looked after his interests to date and who would 
appear very capable of putting forward a strong defence on his 
behalf. 
(viii) The Romanian penal code allows for a right to appeal to the 
Appeal Court and, if appropriate, thereafter, to the Romanian 
Supreme Court. 

343. This court is una ware of any case where a UK court has 
refused extradition to a Part 1 country as a result of a successful 
Article 6 challenge. However, this does not absolve this court of 
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its obligation to consider any such challenge with appropriate 
care and necessary consideration. 

344. Having taken account of the evidence received both in 
writing and orally, as well as the detailed submissions made by 
the parties, I am not persuaded that the requested person has 
vaulted the hurdle necessary to succeed with this challenge, and 
accordingly this challenge must fail. 

345. Article 3 Ruling: 
During the course of these proceedings, the Romanian authorities 
have provided further information and a number of written 
assurances- relating to prison conditions- specific to Mr 
Adamescu' s detention, in the event of his return to Romania. 
Perhaps the most relevant documents supplied by them are those 
supplied in November 2017. 

346. The letter of 15th November 2017 states that Mr Adamescu 
will be transported from the airport to the ........... . . 
' opprehenrion and preventive custody centre. He will be housed 
in a room 'with an area of 8.66 sq.m (which does not include 
the bathroom area) for 2 places. Hence, the person concerned 
wiU be accommodate (sic) in a room with an individual space of 
4.333sq.m including a bed and proper furniture'. Photographs 
of the proposed cell area have also been provided by the 
Romanian authorities. 

347. While Mr Adamescu does not raise s.25 of the 2003 Act 
('health') as a stand-alone challenge, he submits that his health 
issues are an important factor to be taken into account when this 
court considers the Article 3 challenge. 

348. Having received expert testimony from Prof. Eastman and 
Dr Joseph I am not persuaded that such health difficulties that Mr 
Adamescu may have, add any significant weight to this 
challenge. 

349. The production of the letter of 2200 December 2017 clearly 
has damaging repercussions for Mr Adamescu, in respect of this 
challenge in particular. 
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350. The Judicial Authority has been faced with a myriad of 
complaints about the anticipated prison conditions that are 
expected to be provided to Mr Adamescu in the event that 
extradition were to be ordered. 

351. My attention has not been drawn to any authority under 
English law that demonstrates that the Romanian authorities are, 
in fact, required to provide an assurance in respect of detention 
for a requested person whose return is sought to face trial (as 
opposed to serve a sentence of custody). 

352. Defence complaints about prison conditions continued to be 
raised, at regular intervals, from an early stage in these 
proceedings and showed no sign of abating up to the final day of 
the hearing in this case. 

353. In my opinion, the Romanian authorities have done their 
utmost to deal with these criticisms by providing a number of 
assurance documents, during the course of these protracted 
proceedings. 

354. Most recently the Judicial Authority has provided the 
following assurance documents; 
(a) A document dated 15th November 2017 from the Director 
General, National Prison Administration addressed to the 
Directorate for International Law and Judicial Cooperation at the 
Ministry of Justice in Romanian. This document establishes that : 
(i) if Mr Adamescu were to be .... , .. Surrendered to a prison unit 
subordinated to the National Prison Administration, he shall be 
ensured a minimum space of 3 sqm regardless of the prison 
where he shall be held in custody." (emphasis added). 
(ii) Mr Adamescu will have appropriate Consular access 
(iii) Mr Adamescu will have guarantees in relation to access to 
healthcare, including to private practitioners of his choice. 
(b) A further assurance document dated 1 "rh November 2017 
from the Romanian Police General Inspectorate to the Directorate 
for International Law and Judicial Cooperation at the Romanian 
Ministry of Justice states: 
(i) A person handed over at Bucharest airport will ... ... .. be 
accommodated in the apprehension and preventive custody 
centre from the lalomita County Police Inspectorate until the 
preventive measure lawfulness and thoroughness is verified ..... 
After that he will be immediately transferred to the penitentiary 
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facilities subordinated to the National Administration of 
Penitentiaries''. 
(ii) In Ialomita County, Mr Adamescu would be accommodated 
"In a room with an area of 8.66 sq m (which does not include the 
bathroom area), for 2 places. Hence the person concerned will 
be accommodated in a room with an individual space of 
4.333sqm, including bed and proper furniture. '' (emphasis 
added). 

355. The Romanian authorities have also provided a substantial 
document responding to Mr Chirita's report received on 24th 
November 2017. It dealt comprehensively - and in this court' s 
view - satisfactorily with a number of criticisms made by Mr 
Chirita of prison conditions within the Romanian prison estate. 
There followed 2 further assurance documents dated 16th 
January 2018 which dealt with the available health care and 
detention in Ialomita County. 

356. With regard to the letters said to have been provided by 
recent extraditees from the UK, stating that Romania has not 
abided by assurances previously given to the UK authorities, this 
court has to take into account that their evidence is not accepted 
by the Judicial Authority. 

357. The CPS made enquiries to see if it could be arranged for 
those extraditees to be made available for cross-examination, but 
this court has been informed that Romanian law does not allow 
this to take place. Albeit those letters have been entered into 
evidence, I feel that I can only give them little weight, as th.e 
contents are not agreed and the Judicial Authority has not had the 
opportunity to cross-examine the authors. 

358. I am satisfied that the Romanian authorities are not only 
well aware of their Convention obligations, inter alia, in respect 
of Article 3, but that they will abide by those obligations. 

359. This has been a very long case and one not without its 
complications. The hearing has lasted several days. I have 
carefully considered the plethora of evidence served and I have 
listened attentively to a number of live witnesses. 
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360. I have received and absorbed some 175 pages of written 
submissions from counsel during the course of the proceedings. 

361. I am entirely satisfied to the necessary standard that there are 
no bars to this extradition request as provided for by the 2003 
Act. I am also entirely satisfied that extradition will be 
compatible with Mr Adamescu's Human Rights. 

362. I therefore order the extradition of the Requested Person 
Bogdan-Alexander Adamescu to return to Romania to face the 
criminal prosecution in respect of the matters set out in the EA W 
previously referred to. 

363. Extradition is ordered in accordance with the provisions of 
s.21A(5) of the 2003 Act. 

364. Bogdan-Alexander Adamescu is to be advised of his rights 
to seek permission to appeal against the decision of this court 
ordering his extradition. 

~ 
District Judge (MC) 

APPROPRIATE JUDGE 

) ~ APRIL 2018 
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